










From: Jeremy Johnston
To: "Andy"
Subject: RE: Your application CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC has been Deemed Complete
Date: Tuesday, July 14, 2020 10:22:13 AM
Attachments: image003.png

Hi Andy,
 
Perfect, thank you for the clarification.
 
Jeremy Johnston, MURP                                     
Kittitas County CDS, Planner II                                                                              
(509) 962-7065                                                                                      
jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us 
                              

           
“Building Partnerships-Building Communities”
 
Please Note:  In an effort to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 and the Govenor’s "Safe Start" reopening plan, Kittitas
County Community Development Services is closed to the public until further notice. At this time I am working
remotely and will do my best to respond to you as promptly as possible.
 
 
 
 

From: Andy <andy@orrionfarms.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, July 14, 2020 8:27 AM
To: Jeremy Johnston <jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us>
Subject: RE: Your application CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC has been Deemed Complete
 
Good morning Jeremy,
 
We ramp up the number of temporary workers at the Ellensburg location from April to
August. The amount of farm labor needed* during this time of year can change month to
month.
From September to March most of the temporary laborers leave for the Winter, with many of
them moving to the Scottsdale location.
 
 
Andy Uribe
Property Manager
Andy@orrionfarms.com
509-899-7186

mailto:jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us
mailto:andy@orrionfarms.com
mailto:jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us
mailto:Andy@orrionfarms.com
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Sent from Mail for Windows 10
 

From: Jeremy Johnston
Sent: Monday, July 13, 2020 4:16 PM
To: Andy
Subject: RE: Your application CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC has been Deemed Complete
 
HI Andy,
 
I plan to notice your application this week and begin the comment period. I did want to clarify
something before I initiate the comment period. Your application does not appear to specify the
general seasons in which these structures will be occupied by workers. I had a neighbor come by our
office inquiring what “seasonal” implies as it relates to horses. If you can clarify this, it would be very
helpful. Thank you.
 
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
 
 
 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986
mailto:jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us
mailto:andy@orrionfarms.com
mailto:jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us


 

From: Andy <andy@orrionfarms.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 8, 2020 1:59 PM
To: Jeremy Johnston <jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Jennifer Andrews
<jen@andrewsandrews.com>
Subject: RE: Your application CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC has been Deemed Complete
 
Attached is the signed affidavit and the picture of the posting.
 
Andy Uribe
Property Manager
Andy@orrionfarmscom
509-899-7186
 
 

 
 
 
Sent from Mail for Windows 10
 

From: Jeremy Johnston
Sent: Wednesday, July 1, 2020 7:54 AM
To: Andy; Jennifer Andrews
Subject: Your application CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC has been Deemed Complete
 
Good Morning,
 
Kittitas County CDS has found your application to be complete. Attached is the deemed complete
letter outlining the next steps in the process. A Land Use Posting Sign has been prepared and is
ready for pickup. I have also attached an affidavit of posting memo along with a map with specific
instructions for the posting site. I will also include these documents with the sign upon pickup Once
the sign is posted please sign the affidavit of posting and return it to our office along with a picture
of the sign in place (you can also send these items to my email address if it is more convenient).
Please note the sign must remain secured and in place until the end of any appeal period following a
determination for your application. Let me know if you have any questions.
 

mailto:andy@orrionfarms.com
mailto:jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us
mailto:jen@andrewsandrews.com
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
 
 
 

The information transmitted by this email is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed. This email may contain
confidential and/or privileged material. If you are not the intended recipient of this message, be aware that any use, review,
retransmission, distribution, or reproduction is strictly prohibited. If you received this in error, please contact the sender immediately and
delete the material from all devices. 
message id: 38eb45916c6dcbdac24bb8719d004a14
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AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING

Effective July 19, 2007, Kittitas County Code requires all project actions that are not processed administratively
to have a notice posted at the site of the project.  Per KCC 15A.03.110 the following applies:

1.    The applicant shall post the subject property with signs as required by Community Development Services.
2.    Signs shall be posted on each road frontage on the subject property and shall be clearly visible and

accessible.
3.    Signs shall be posted and on-site prior to the issuance of a Notice of Application.
4.    The sign shall be posted in a sturdy manner to remain on-site until fifteen days after the expiration of the

Notice of Decision appeal period.  It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to properly dispose of the
sign.

5.    At the time of development application, Community Development Services will identify the number of
signs needed and the general location of each sign on the subject property.

6.    It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to place the structure on which the sign will be posted on site.
At such time the structure and sign is in place, the applicant shall contact Community Development
Services.

DATE: July 1, 2020 PLANNER:  Jeremy Johnston

PROJECT NAME:  Westdale LLC Conditionaluse FILE NUMBER:  CU-20-00001

PLEASE COMPLETE THE FOLL0lvING:

this time

certify that I am the landowner and/or authorized
agent responsible for the posting of this land use project site and further certify that the site has been posted as
required by Kittitas County Code.  I understand that the required posting period begins immediately and ends 15
days after the ending of the appeal period on the Notice of Decision and the sign(s) will be posted at the site until

Failure to post the site and return this form to Community Development Services in a timely
result in a delay of the application review for the project.

Signature
?-6-2®-_

Date

Please return the above certification to CDS; Fax at 509-962-7682; or mail to; Community Development
Services, 411 North Ruby Street, Suite 2, Ellensburg, WA 98926.

For Staff Use Only:
Received

COMMUNITY PLANNING . BUILDING INS.PECTI0N . PLAN REVIEW . ADMINISTRATION . PERMIT SERVICES . CODE ENFORCEMENT
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 KITTITAS COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 411 N. Ruby St. Suite 2 Ellensburg WA 98926 
 cds@co.kittitas.wa.us 
 Office 509-962-7506 
 Building Partnerships - Building Communities  

 

 
 Community Planning       Building Inspection       Plan Review       Administration       Permit Services       Code Enforcement   

 NOTICE OF APPLICATION 
 

  Notice of Application:  Thursday, July 16, 2020 
 Application Received:       Thursday, June 4, 2020 
 Application Complete:  Wednesday, July 1, 2020  
 
 
 Project Name File Number:  Westdale LLC (CU-20-00001) 
Applicant:  Andy Uribe 
 

  Location: Parcel 12701 located at 4900 Manastash Rd, Ellensburg, WA. In the NW1/4 of Section 18, Township 17N, Range 
18E 
 

Proposal: The proposed project would add four manufactured homes for the purposes of farm labor shelter. Farm labor shelter 
is an allowed use in the Agriculture 20 zone with a conditional use permit.  

Materials Available for Review: The submitted application and related filed documents may be examined by the public at the 
Kittitas County Community Development Services (CDS) office at 411 N. Ruby, Suite 2, Ellensburg, Washington, 98926, or on 
the CDS website at https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/cds/land-use/default.aspx, under “Conditional Use Permits” under permit 
number “CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC,” Phone: (509) 962-7506. 

Written Comments on this proposal can be submitted to CDS any time prior to 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, July 30, 2020.  Any 
person has the right to comment on the application and request a copy of the decision once made 

Environmental Review:  The County expects to issue a Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) for this proposal, and will 
use the optional DNS process, meaning this may be the only opportunity for the public to comment on the environmental 
impacts of the proposal. Mitigation measures may be required under applicable codes, such as Title 17 Zoning and the Fire 
Code. A copy of the threshold determination may be obtained from the County. 

Public Hearing: An open record hearing will be scheduled before the Kittitas County Hearing Examiner. A Public Hearing 
Notice will be issued establishing the date, time and location of this hearing. 

Required Permits: Conditional Use Permit, SEPA 

Required Studies: None 
 
Designated Permit Coordinator (staff contact):  Jeremy Johnston, Staff Planner: (509) 962-7065; email at 
jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us 

 

https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/cds/land-use/default.aspx
mailto:jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us
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NOTICE OF APPLICATION
�

�Project Name (File Number): Westdale LLC (CU-20-00001)
�

�Applicant: Westdale LLC, Andy Uribe (agent)
�
Location: Parcel 12701 located at 4900 Manastash Rd, Ellensburg,

�WA. In the NW1/4 of Section 18, Township 17N, Range 18E.
�
Proposal: The proposed project would add four manufactured homes

for  the purposes of  farm labor  shelter.  Farm labor  shelter  is  an
allowed  use  in  the  Agriculture  20  zone  with  a  conditional  use

�permit.
�
Materials Available for Review: The submitted application and related

filed  documents  may  be  examined  by  the  public  at  the  Kittitas
County Community Development Services (CDS) office at 411 N.
Ruby,  Suite  2,  Ellensburg,  Washington,  98926,  or  on  the  CDS
website  at  https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/cds/land-use/default.aspx,
under  “Conditional  Use  Permits”  under  permit  number  “CU-20-

�00001 Westdale LLC,” Phone: (509) 962 7506.
�
Written Comments on this proposal  can be submitted to CDS any

time prior to 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, July 30, 2020. Any person
has the right to comment on the application and request a copy of

�the decision once made
   �
Environmental  Review  (SEPA):  The  County  expects  to  issue  a

Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) for this proposal, and will
use  the  optional  DNS  process,  meaning  this  may  be  the  only
opportunity for the public to comment on the environmental impacts
of  the  proposal.  Mitigation  measures  may  be  required  under
applicable codes, such as Title 17 Zoning and the Fire Code. A
copy  of  the  threshold  determination  may  be  obtained  from the

�County.
�
Public Hearing: An open record hearing will be scheduled before the

Kittitas County Hearing Examiner. A Public Hearing Notice will be
�issued establishing the date, time and location of this hearing.

�
�Required Permits: Conditional Use Permit, SEPA

�
�Required Studies: None

 �
Designated Permit Coordinator (staff contact): Jeremy Johnston, Staff

Planner:  (509)  962-7065;  email  at
jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us�

�
Notice of Application: Thursday,    July 16, 2020 �

�Application Received: Thursday,    June 4, 2020
�Application Complete: Wednesday, July 1, 2020 

�Publication Date: Thursday,    July 16, 2020
�

�Publish Daily Record: Thursday, July 16, 2020





NORTH COVE LAKE HOMEOWNERS 
ASSOCIATION 
null 
null, null null 
 

 SULLIVAN EDWARD L. 
5133 MANASTASH RD 
ELLENSBURG, WA 98926 
 

 DUNCAN CRAIG D ETUX 
6320 COVE RD 
ELLENSBURG, WA 98926-7966 
 

LEVINE BRADLEY R. ETUX 
5271 MANASTASH ROAD 
ELLENSBURG, WA 98926 
 

 MANASTASH FARMS LLC 
5111 MANASTASH RD 
ELLENSBURG, WA 98926 
 

 ANFINSON SCOTT E & CORRINE 
5445 MANASTASH RD 
ELLENSBURG, WA 98926-7892 
 

WESTDALE LLC 
280 ORRION RD 
ELLENSBURG, WA 98926-9122 
 

 BOGDEN MITCHAEL 
PO BOX 47 
THORP, WA 98946-0047 
 

 MFSR E LLC 
PO BOX 393 
NORTH BEND, WA 98045 
 

TAX JAMES & APRIL 
14237 73RD AVE NE 
KIRKLAND, WA 98034-4932 
 

 HAMMOND KENNETH A & BRITTA JO 
7321 COVE RD 
ELLENSBURG, WA 98926-7817 
 

 STORLIE KENNETH G 
1304 NW 61ST ST 
VANCOUVER, WA 98663 
 

STULTZ CAROL 
12104 56TH PL SE 
SNOHOMISH, WA 98290-5500 
 

 SOUTH COVE LAKE HOMEOWNERS 
ASSOCIATION 
null 
null, null null 

      
 

 FULLER AUDRA-JIEN 
6390 COVE RD 
ELLENSBURG, WA 98926-7966 
 

STATE OF WASH WILDLIFE 
600 CAPITOL WAY N 
OLYMPIA, WA 98501-1076 
 

 WESTDALE LLC 
1201 3RD AVE 
SEATTLE, WA 98101-3029 
 

 POULTER LORI 
5321 MANASTASH RD 
ELLENSBURG, WA 98926 
 

HUNDTOFT DAVID JAMES & JOANN 
HEATHER 
110 W 6TH AVE PMB 292 
ELLENSBURG, WA 98926-3106 
 

 HOSMER WILLIAM A & CAMI L 
2220 E GAME FARM RD 
ELLENSBURG, WA 98926-7281 
 

 MANASTASH GRANGE 
924 S CAPITOL WAY S 
OLYMPIA, WA 98501-1210 
 

FRISTAD ERIN M 
PO BOX 832 
ELLENSBURG, WA 98926-1922 
 

 SCHLIESMAN JORDAN & KAYLA 
51 ASPEN DR 
ELLENSBURG, WA 98926-5513 
 

 PIERCE JUDITH C. 
4601 MANASTASH RD 
ELLENSBURG, WA 98926-7825 
 

STORLIE ROBERT M. 
4971 MANASTASH RD 
ELLENSBURG, WA 98926 
 

 SULLIVAN ALLEN ERIC 
5111 MANASTASH RD 
ELLENSBURG, WA 98926-7820 
 

 PIERCE JACK D. 
4891 MANASTASH RD 
ELLENSBURG, WA 98926 
 

SIMPSON FAMILY TRUST 
6630 COVE RD 
ELLENSBURG, WA 98926-8224 
 

 LAGRON GUISLAIN H ETUX 
2219 240TH AVE SE 
SAMMAMISH, WA 98075 
 

  



From: Jeremy Johnston
To: Pat Nicholson; Ryan McAllister; Kim Dawson; Julie Kjorsvik; Toni Berkshire; Jesse Cox; Holly Erdman; Lisa

Lawrence; Patti Johnson; Candie Leader; Gail Weyand; "jessica@yakama.com"; "jmarvin@yakama.com";
"johnson@yakama.com"; "enviroreview@yakama.com"; "sepaunit@ecy.wa.gov"; "gcle461@ecy.wa.gov";
"lowh461@ECY.WA.GOV"; "migi461@ECY.WA.GOV"; "Scott.Downes@dfw.wa.gov";
"Jennifer.Nelson@dfw.wa.gov"; "Elizabeth.Torrey@dfw.wa.gov"; "sepa@dahp.wa.gov"; "jorgenja@cwu.edu";
"nelmsk@cwu.edu"; Mike Flory; Douglas Mitchell; Jeremy Larson; Steph Mifflin; "russell.mau@doh.wa.gov";
"becky.kennedy@dnr.wa.gov"; "cindy.preston@dnr.wa.gov"; "rivers@dnr.wa.gov";
"brooksideconsulting@gmail.com"; "lhendrix@usbr.gov"; "Michael.j.daniels3.civ@mail.mil";
"mark.a.gradwohl.civ@mail.mil"; RichElliott; "ECY RE SEPA REGISTER"

Subject: Notice of Application CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC
Date: Thursday, July 16, 2020 8:55:12 AM
Attachments: CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC Notice of Application.pdf

SE-20-00002 Westdake LLC SEPA Checklist.pdf

Good Morning,
 
Kittitas County CDS is requesting comment on the Conditional Use application CU-20-00001
Westdale LLC. The applicant is proposing the construction of four manufactured homes for seasonal
farm worker housing. All application documents can be found at the links below. I have also attached
the SEPA Checklist for recording. Please let me know if you have any issues accessing the materials.
Please submit any comments for this application by 5pm on July 30, 2020. If CDS does not receive
comments by this date, we will assume your agency has no interest in the application. Thank you.
 
CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC Internal Link
 
CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC External Link
 
 
 
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


























































      
 
 

411 North Ruby Street, Suite 1 TEL (509) 962-7523 
Ellensburg, WA  98926 FAX (509) 962-7663  
 
 

KITTITAS COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

MEMORANDUM 
TO:  All Staff 
FROM:  Public Works Planning Review Team 
DATE:  July 27, 2020 
SUBJECT: CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC 
 
 
The Department of Public Works has reviewed the Westdale LLC Conditional Use Permit CU-20-
00001 and has the following comments: 
 
Access:   
 

A. An access permit is required for the shared driveway. The access off Victory Lane will 
be constructed to current Kittitas County joint-use driveway standards. The access 
must be constructed and inspected prior to the occupancy of any home. 

B. A separate address will be required for each home. 

C. A grading permit will be required for any grading or fill over 100 cubic yards.  
 
Stormwater: 
 
Kittitas County had adopted the Stormwater Management Manual for Eastern Washington. All 
new development and redevelopment, unless certain exemptions are met, are required to meet 
the requirements for:  
 
Core Element 1 – Preparation of Stormwater Site Plan 
Core Element 2 – Construction Stormwater Pollution Prevention 
Core Element 3 – Source Control of Pollution 
Core Element 4 – Preservation of Natural Drainage Systems 
 
Projects that will create greater than 5,000 square feet of impervious surface need to provide 
an engineered stormwater plan to Public Works that demonstrates how the project meets the 
requirements for all the applicable Core Elements, including also: 
 
Core Element 5 – Runoff Treatment (if Pollution Generating Impervious Surfaces > 5,000 sq. ft.) 
Core Element 6 – Flow Control (if Impervious Surfaces > 10,000 sq. ft.) 
Core Element 7 – Operations and Maintenance (If thresholds for core element 5 or 6 are met) 
 



From: Holly Erdman
To: Jeremy Johnston
Subject: RE: Notice of Application CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC
Date: Wednesday, July 29, 2020 3:56:59 PM

Jeremy,
 
The applicant will need to get the approval of either a Group B or a Group A water system to serve
the 4 farm worker housing proposed.  It will be determined which system will be required depending
upon the population of people anticipated.  The well site will need to be approved as a potable well
source.
 
Thank you,
 
Holly Erdman
 
 

From: Jeremy Johnston <jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us> 
Sent: Thursday, July 16, 2020 8:55 AM
To: Pat Nicholson <pat.nicholson@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Ryan McAllister
<ryan.mcallister@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Kim Dawson <kim.dawson@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Julie Kjorsvik
<julie.kjorsvik@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Toni Berkshire <toni.berkshire@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Jesse Cox
<jesse.cox@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Holly Erdman <Holly.erdman@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Lisa Lawrence
<lisa.lawrence@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Patti Johnson <patti.johnson@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Candie Leader
<candie.leader@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Gail Weyand <gail.weyand.pw@co.kittitas.wa.us>;
'jessica@yakama.com' <jessica@yakama.com>; 'jmarvin@yakama.com' <jmarvin@yakama.com>;
'johnson@yakama.com' <johnson@yakama.com>; 'enviroreview@yakama.com'
<enviroreview@yakama.com>; 'sepaunit@ecy.wa.gov' <sepaunit@ecy.wa.gov>;
'gcle461@ecy.wa.gov' <gcle461@ecy.wa.gov>; 'lowh461@ECY.WA.GOV' <lowh461@ECY.WA.GOV>;
'migi461@ECY.WA.GOV' <migi461@ECY.WA.GOV>; 'Scott.Downes@dfw.wa.gov'
<Scott.Downes@dfw.wa.gov>; 'Jennifer.Nelson@dfw.wa.gov' <Jennifer.Nelson@dfw.wa.gov>;
'Elizabeth.Torrey@dfw.wa.gov' <Elizabeth.Torrey@dfw.wa.gov>; 'sepa@dahp.wa.gov'
<sepa@dahp.wa.gov>; 'jorgenja@cwu.edu' <jorgenja@cwu.edu>; 'nelmsk@cwu.edu'
<nelmsk@cwu.edu>; Mike Flory <mike.flory@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Douglas Mitchell
<douglas.mitchell@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Jeremy Larson <jeremy.larson@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Steph
Mifflin <stephanie.mifflin@co.kittitas.wa.us>; 'russell.mau@doh.wa.gov'
<russell.mau@doh.wa.gov>; 'becky.kennedy@dnr.wa.gov' <becky.kennedy@dnr.wa.gov>;
'cindy.preston@dnr.wa.gov' <cindy.preston@dnr.wa.gov>; 'rivers@dnr.wa.gov'
<rivers@dnr.wa.gov>; 'brooksideconsulting@gmail.com' <brooksideconsulting@gmail.com>;
'lhendrix@usbr.gov' <lhendrix@usbr.gov>; 'Michael.j.daniels3.civ@mail.mil'
<Michael.j.daniels3.civ@mail.mil>; 'mark.a.gradwohl.civ@mail.mil' <mark.a.gradwohl.civ@mail.mil>;
RichElliott <elliottr@kvfr.org>; 'ECY RE SEPA REGISTER' <separegister@ecy.wa.gov>
Subject: Notice of Application CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC
 
Good Morning,
 

mailto:holly.erdman@co.kittitas.wa.us
mailto:jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us


From: Rich Elliott
To: Jeremy Johnston
Cc: Joe Delvo; Pat Nicholson; Ryan McAllister; John Sinclair
Subject: RE: [Ext] Notice of Application CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC
Date: Thursday, July 16, 2020 1:41:52 PM

KVFR is not the AHJ for fire code matters however we have an operational interest in this project.
We make the following recommendations and defer to KCFMO for code application:

·         Appendix D (current fire code at time of building permit) compliance for access and
turnaround.

·         Compliant addressing on county road and on housing units – visible from both directions of
travel.

·         Strongly – recommend that the residential units be equipped with alarm and 13R
sprinklers due to possible transient/high density occupancy and likely response times
exceeding 10 minutes.

 
Thank you
 
Rich Elliott – Deputy Fire Chief
Kittitas Valley Fire and Rescue
509-201-6280
 
 
 

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
<Scott.Downes@dfw.wa.gov>; jennifer.nelson@dfw.wa.gov; 'Elizabeth.Torrey@dfw.wa.gov'
<Elizabeth.Torrey@dfw.wa.gov>; 'sepa@dahp.wa.gov' <sepa@dahp.wa.gov>; 'jorgenja@cwu.edu'
<jorgenja@cwu.edu>; 'nelmsk@cwu.edu' <nelmsk@cwu.edu>; Mike Flory
<mike.flory@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Douglas Mitchell <douglas.mitchell@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Jeremy
Larson <jeremy.larson@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Steph Mifflin <stephanie.mifflin@co.kittitas.wa.us>;
'russell.mau@doh.wa.gov' <russell.mau@doh.wa.gov>; 'becky.kennedy@dnr.wa.gov'
<becky.kennedy@dnr.wa.gov>; 'cindy.preston@dnr.wa.gov' <cindy.preston@dnr.wa.gov>;
'rivers@dnr.wa.gov' <rivers@dnr.wa.gov>; 'brooksideconsulting@gmail.com'
<brooksideconsulting@gmail.com>; 'lhendrix@usbr.gov' <lhendrix@usbr.gov>;
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From: Pat Nicholson
To: Jeremy Johnston
Cc: Joe Delvo; Ryan McAllister; John Sinclair; RichElliott
Subject: RE: [Ext] Notice of Application CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC
Date: Thursday, July 16, 2020 3:20:28 PM

Jeremy,
 
Access to be IFC and public works compliant for fire access road.
Streetside addressing visible from the road on each structure.
All structures subject to annual fire and life safety inspections.
Knox access to be installed on primary gate.
 
Upon building permit application and plan review, the requirement for a fire alarm system and/or
sprinkler system will be determined at that time.  I do not have enough information to determine R
occupancy type, occupant load, etc.
 
Project subject to WUI.
 
Thanks,
 
Pat
 

From: RichElliott <elliottr@kvfr.org> 
Sent: Thursday, July 16, 2020 1:42 PM
To: Jeremy Johnston <jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us>
Cc: Joe Delvo <delvoj@kvfr.org>; Pat Nicholson <pat.nicholson@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Ryan McAllister
<ryan.mcallister@co.kittitas.wa.us>; John Sinclair <sinclairj@kvfr.org>
Subject: RE: [Ext] Notice of Application CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC
 
KVFR is not the AHJ for fire code matters however we have an operational interest in this project.
We make the following recommendations and defer to KCFMO for code application:

Appendix D (current fire code at time of building permit) compliance for access and
turnaround.
Compliant addressing on county road and on housing units – visible from both directions of
travel.
Strongly – recommend that the residential units be equipped with alarm and 13R
sprinklers due to possible transient/high density occupancy and likely response times
exceeding 10 minutes.

 
Thank you
 
Rich Elliott – Deputy Fire Chief
Kittitas Valley Fire and Rescue
509-201-6280
 

mailto:pat.nicholson@co.kittitas.wa.us
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From: Mau, Russell E (DOH)
To: Jeremy Johnston
Cc: Holly Erdman; Smits, Brenda M (DOH); Hayden, Kathryn E (DOH); Iwagoshi, Stan
Subject: RE: Notice of Application CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC
Date: Tuesday, July 28, 2020 7:23:09 AM

Mr. Johnston:
 
The Department of Health (DOH) Office of Drinking Water (ODW) has the following comments:
 

1.       If these farmworker housing units are connecting to an existing water system, then the
applicant needs to identify that water system, so the DOH ODW can confirm water
availability.

2.       If these farmworker housing units are connecting to a new water system, then the applicant
needs to submit a water system application, including source approval, to DOH ODW for
review and subsequent approval.

 
These constitute my complete set of comments regarding drinking water.
 
If you have questions or concerns, please contact me.
 
Thanks,
 
 
Russell E. Mau, PhD, PE
Regional Engineer
Office of Drinking Water
Washington State Department of Health
16201 East Indiana Avenue, Suite 1500, Spokane Valley, WA  99216
Russell.Mau@doh.wa.gov
509-329-2116 | www.doh.wa.gov
 

From: Jeremy Johnston [mailto:jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us] 
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
<enviroreview@yakama.com>; ECY RE SEPA REGISTER <separegister@ecy.wa.gov>; Clear, Gwen
(ECY) <GCLE461@ECY.WA.GOV>; White, Lori (ECY) <lowh461@ECY.WA.GOV>;
'migi461@ECY.WA.GOV' <migi461@ECY.WA.GOV>; Downes, Scott G (DFW)
<Scott.Downes@dfw.wa.gov>; Nelson, Jennifer L (DFW) <Jennifer.Nelson@dfw.wa.gov>; Torrey,
Elizabeth M (DFW) <Elizabeth.Torrey@dfw.wa.gov>; SEPA (DAHP) <sepa@dahp.wa.gov>;

mailto:jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us
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http://www.doh.wa.gov/


 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY 
1250 West Alder Street  Union Gap, Washington 98903-0009  (509) 575-2490 

 
 
July 27, 2020 
 
 
 
Jeremy Johnston 
Kittitas County Community Development 
411 N. Ruby St., Suite 2 
Ellensburg, WA 98926 
 
Re:  CU-20-00001 
 
Dear Jeremy Johnston: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment during the optional determination of nonsignificance 
process for the addition of four manufactured homes (cluster) for the purposes of farm labor 
shelter.  This project is proposed by Andy Uribe for Westdale LLC. We have reviewed the 
documents and have the following comments. 
 
WATER QUALITY  
 
Project with Potential to Discharge Off-Site 
The NPDES Construction Stormwater General Permit from the Washington State Department of 
Ecology is required if there is a potential for stormwater discharge from a construction site with 
disturbed ground. This permit requires that the SEPA checklist fully disclose anticipated 
activities including building, road construction and utility placements.  Obtaining a permit may 
take 38-60 days.  
 
The permit requires that a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (Erosion Sediment Control 
Plan) shall be prepared and implemented for all permitted construction sites. These control 
measures must be able to prevent soil from being carried into surface water and storm drains by 
stormwater runoff.  Permit coverage and erosion control measures must be in place prior to any 
clearing, grading, or construction. 
 
More information on the stormwater program may be found on Ecology's stormwater website at: 
http://www.ecy.wa.gov/programs/wq/stormwater/construction/ . Please submit an application or 
contact Wendy Neet at the Dept. of Ecology, 509-454-7277 or email wendy.neet@ecy.wa.gov , 
with questions about this permit. 
 
 
 

http://www.ecy.wa.gov/programs/wq/stormwater/construction/
mailto:wendy.neet@ecy.wa.gov


Jeremy Johnston 
July 27, 2020 
Page 2  
 
 
WATER RESOURCES  
 
In Washington State, prospective water users must obtain authorization from the Department of 
Ecology before diverting surface water or withdrawing ground water, with one exception. 
Ground water withdrawals of up to 5,000 gallons per day used for single or group domestic 
supply, industrial purposes, stock watering or for the irrigation of up to one-half acre of lawn and 
garden are exempt from the permitting process. Water use under the RCW 90.44.050 exemption 
establishes a water right that is subject to the same privileges, restrictions, laws and regulations 
as a water right permit or certificate obtained directly from Ecology. 
 
If you have any questions or would like to respond to these Water Resources comments, please 
contact Christopher Kossik at 509-454-7872 or email at christopher.kossik@ecy.wa.gov . 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Tricia Sawyer on behalf of Gwen Clear 
Environmental Review Coordinator 
Central Regional Office 
509-575-2012 
crosepa@ecy.wa.gov 
 
202003666 

mailto:christopher.kossik@ecy.wa.gov
mailto:crosepacoordinator@ecy.wa.gov






 

 

State of Washington • Department of Archaeology & Historic Preservation 

P.O. Box 48343 • Olympia, Washington  98504-8343 • (360) 586-3065 

www.dahp.wa.gov 

 

 
July 30, 2020 

 
Jeremy Johnston 
Planner II 
Kittitas County 
411 Ruby St., Suite 2 
Ellensburg, WA 98926 
 
In future correspondence please refer to: 
Project Tracking Code:        2020-07-04912 
Property: Kittitas County_Westdale LLC Seasonal Farmworker Housing Construction Project 
(CU-20-00001) 
Re:          Inadvertent Discovery Plan Requested 
 
Dear Jeremy Johnston: 
 
Thank you for contacting the Washington State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO) and 
Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation (DAHP) and providing documentation 
regarding the above referenced project. A desktop review of our Statewide Predictive Model has 
identified the proposed project area as having high potential for archaeological resources. 
However, due to the small footprint of the project, DAHP is not requesting a cultural resources 
survey at this time. We do ask that you prepare an inadvertent discovery plan (IDP) and prepare 
construction crews for the possibility of encountering archaeological material during ground 
disturbing activities. We also recommend consultation with the concerned Tribes' cultural 
committees and staff regarding cultural resource issues. 
 
These comments are based on the information available at the time of this review and on behalf 
of the SHPO in conformance with Washington State law. Should additional information become 
available, our assessment may be revised. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this project. Should you have any questions, 
please feel free to contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Sydney Hanson 
Transportation Archaeologist 
(360) 586-3082 
Sydney.Hanson@dahp.wa.gov 



From: Mike Flory
To: Jeremy Johnston
Cc: Dan Carlson
Subject: RE: Notice of Application CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC
Date: Thursday, August 20, 2020 3:20:29 PM

Hi Jeremy,
 
I apologize this is late so I don’t expect or need it to be part of the official record…
If they are building farmworker housing, they don’t need a building permit through the county for
the actual living buildings. They apply to the State Dept of Health for building permit and inspections.
 
Any other building, even if it supports the housing, say like a community laundry room or something
does require a local building permit.
 
If it’s appropriate, do you mind letting the applicant know please?
 

Michael Flory
Certified Building Official
 
Kittitas County Community Development Services
411 N Ruby Street Suite 2
Ellensburg, WA 98926
P:  509.933.8222 mike.flory@co.kittitas.wa.us
 
To schedule inspections: https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/cds/building/inspection-request.aspx
To view permit or inspection status: https://co-kittitas-wa.smartgovcommunity.com/ApplicationPublic/ApplicationHome
To request design criteria / snowloads: https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/cds/building/cgdc-form.aspx
 

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

mailto:mike.flory@co.kittitas.wa.us
mailto:jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us
mailto:dan.carlson@co.kittitas.wa.us
mailto:mike.flory@co.kittitas.wa.us
https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/cds/building/inspection-request.aspx
https://co-kittitas-wa.smartgovcommunity.com/ApplicationPublic/ApplicationHome
https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/cds/building/cgdc-form.aspx


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

file:////fileserver-03/teams/CDS/Projects/CUP/CU%202020/CU-20-00001%20Westdale%20LLC/2%20CU-20-00001%20Westdale%20LLC%20Application
https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/cds/land-use/project-details.aspx?title=Conditional%20Use%20Permits&project=CU-20-00001+Westdale+LLC
mailto:jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us


message id: 38eb45916c6dcbdac24bb8719d004a14



From: Jeremy Johnston
To: "Andy"; "Jennifer Andrews"
Subject: CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC Transmittal of Comments
Date: Monday, August 3, 2020 10:09:13 AM
Attachments: CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC Transmittal of Comments.pdf

Combined Comments CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC.pdf

Good Morning,
 
The comment period for your application has concluded. Attached is a transmittal of comments
letter and a bookmarked pdf of all of the comments provided. Feel free to provide CDS with
response to any comments you wish, but please do so by August 18, 2020 at 5pm. Let me know if
you have any questions.
 
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



 
 


COMMUNITY PLANNING  BUILDING INSPECTION  PLAN REVIEW  ADMINISTRATION  PERMIT SERVICES  CODE ENFORCEMENT  FIRE INVESTIGATION 


KITTITAS COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
411 N. Ruby St., Suite 2, Ellensburg, WA  98926 


CDS@CO.KITTITAS.WA.US 
Office (509) 962-7506 


 
                                                                                                                                                                         


“Building Partnerships – Building Communities” 


                                                                                                                                                                         


 
 
 
August 3, 2020 
 
Westdale LLC. 
ATTN: Andy Uribe 
280 Orrion Rd. 
Ellensburg, WA 98926 
 
RE: Westdale LLC Conditional Use Application (CU-20-00001) 
 
Dear Applicant, 
 
Enclosed are the comments received regarding the Conditional Use Permit Application (CU-20-00001) during the comment 
period: 
 
July 27, 2020  Kittitas County Public Works 
July 29, 2020  Kittitas County Public Health – Holly Erdman 
July 16, 2020  Kittitas Valley Fire and Rescue-Rich Elliott 
July 16, 2020  Kittitas County Fire Marshal 
July 28, 2020  Department of Health – Russell Mau 
July 27, 2020  Department of Ecology – Tricia Sawyer 
July 29, 2020  Tom Chini  
July 30, 2020  Department of Archeology and Historic Preservation 
 
  
Please review all comments and notify me of any questions. Feel free to respond to any comments submitted by 5 pm on 
August 18, 2020.  I will be issuing a decision recommendation based in part on the comments received. You will be notified 
if any of these comments require further action. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jeremy Johnston 
Planner II 
Kittitas County Community Development Services 
411 N Ruby Street, Suite 2 Ellensburg, WA 98926 
(p) 509-962-7506  
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





		Kittitas County Public Works

		Kittitas County Public Health

		KVFR

		Kittitas County Fire Marshal

		Washington State Department of Health

		Washington State Department of Ecology

		Tom Chini

		DHAP
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
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Notice of SEPA Action and Public Hearing 

Westdale LLC 
CU-20-00001 

 
To:   Adjacent Property Owners 
  Applicant 
 
From:   Jeremy Johnston, Planner 
 
Date:  December 16, 2020 
 
Subject: Westdale LLC (CU-20-00001) 
 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY given that Kittitas County CDS and the Kittitas County Hearings Examiner will meet at 
6:00 p.m. on January 14, 2021 to conduct a virtual public hearing to consider the Westdale LLC Conditional Use 
application (CU-20-00001).  The proposed project would add four manufactured homes for the purposes of farm 
labor shelter to be occupied between the months of April and August. 
  
All interested parties are encouraged to attend the hearing by using one of the methods listed below: 
 
1. By online Webex video conferencing: Meeting Link: 
2. https://kittitascounty.webex.com/kittitascounty/j.php?MTID=mca07cf130305c03ff28b8e10bc1b98f2 
3. By https://kittitascountywebex.com or the Cisco Webex App on your phone or electronic device:  

Meeting Number: 146 732 8890 Meeting Password: 3PZhAJZX2z7 
4. By telephone: 1-408-418-9388, Meeting Number: 1467328890 
 
Instruction for how to participate in virtual public hearings may be found at: 
https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/uploads/documents/cds/Virtual%20Public%20Hearing%20Instructions.pdf.   
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY given that pursuant to WAC 197-11-355, Kittitas County Community Development 
Services did on, December 16, 2020, issue a Final Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) for the Westdale 
LLC application (CU-20-00001) 
 
The lead agency for this proposal has determined that it does not have a probable significant adverse impact on 
the environment.  An environmental impact statement (EIS) is not required under RCW 43.21C.030(2)(c).  This 
decision was made after review of a completed environmental checklist, agency comments and other information 
on file with the lead agency.  This information is available to the public on request.   
 
This DNS is issued after using the optional DNS process in WAC 197-11-355.  There is no further comment 
period on the DNS.  Any action to set aside, enjoin, review, or otherwise challenge this administrative SEPA 
action on the grounds of noncompliance with the provisions of Chapter 43.21C RCW shall be commenced on or 
before January 4, 2021 by 5:00 PM.  
 
Anyone with an interest in this matter is urged to attend this noticed virtual hearing where testimony will be 
taken. Written comments will also be received. Documents may be viewed at 

https://kittitascounty.webex.com/kittitascounty/j.php?MTID=mca07cf130305c03ff28b8e10bc1b98f2
https://kittitascountywebex.com/
https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/uploads/documents/cds/Virtual%20Public%20Hearing%20Instructions.pdf


                                                                                                                                                                         
 
https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/cds/land-use/default.aspx, under “Conditional Use” file number “CU-20-00001 
Westdale LLC or at Kittitas County Community Development Services, 411 N. Ruby St. Suite 2, Ellensburg, WA 
98926 prior to the hearing. Interested persons are encouraged to verify date and time prior to attending.  
 
Planning Official: Jeremy Johnston 
 
Dated:  December 16, 2020 
Publish in: Daily Record- December 16 & December 23, 2020 
   

https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/cds/land-use/default.aspx










From: Gretchen Simpson
To: Jeremy Johnston
Subject: Re: Jeremy Johnston and Staff
Date: Thursday, August 6, 2020 2:01:32 PM

Thank you for your response and including my comments for the next phase Jeremy.

Regards,
Gretchen

On Thu, Aug 6, 2020 at 8:50 AM Jeremy Johnston <jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us>
wrote:

Hi Gretchen,

 

Thank you for noting your concerns regarding the Westdale application. The comment
period has concluded for this project, but I will add your email address to the notification list
for any determinations regarding this application. Regarding your specific concerns, the
applicant is requesting approval for temporary farm housing between the months of April
and August.

 

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

 

Please Note:  In an effort to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 and the Govenor’s "Safe Start" reopening plan,
Kittitas County Community Development Services is closed to the public until further notice. At this time I am
working remotely and will do my best to respond to you as promptly as possible.

 

 

mailto:jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us
mailto:jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us
mailto:jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us


 

 

From: CDS User <planning@co.kittitas.wa.us> 
Sent: Thursday, August 6, 2020 8:17 AM
To: Jeremy Johnston <jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us>
Cc: Lindsey Ozbolt <lindsey.ozbolt@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Dan Carlson
<dan.carlson@co.kittitas.wa.us>
Subject: FW: Jeremy Johnston and Staff

 

 

From: Gretchen Simpson [gretchen.simpson0@gmail.com]
Sent: Wednesday, August 05, 2020 4:41 PM
To: CDS User
Subject: Jeremy Johnston and Staff

I am writing as a concerned citizen regarding the Land Use Action
for

Conditional Use Permits - CU-20-00001 Westdale LLC.
Westdale is requesting for four temporary homes that are 2,800 square feet with a two car
garage with NO Definition of the word temporary.   This puts a strain on the entire county
given the structure of our tax system that uses permit fees to fund programs.  Temporary
homes with no definition of temporary or seasonal do not have to pay taxes yet receive
benefits.  Regulations need to be put into place in order to maintain sustainability. 
Temporary needs to be defined to ensure the homes are not flooded with an abundance of
people that do not take care of the land.  Kindly do your jobs and implement what temporary
or seasonal mean before approving this land use.

 

Regards,

Gretchen Simpson

 

The information transmitted by this email is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed. This email may contain
confidential and/or privileged material. If you are not the intended recipient of this message, be aware that any use, review,
retransmission, distribution, or reproduction is strictly prohibited. If you received this in error, please contact the sender immediately
and delete the material from all devices. 
message id: 38eb45916c6dcbdac24bb8719d004a14

mailto:planning@co.kittitas.wa.us
mailto:jeremy.johnston@co.kittitas.wa.us
mailto:lindsey.ozbolt@co.kittitas.wa.us
mailto:dan.carlson@co.kittitas.wa.us
mailto:gretchen.simpson0@gmail.com
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Westdale Farm Labor Shelter Conditional Use Permit 
 (CU-20-00001) 

 
TO:   Kittitas County Hearing Examiner 
FROM:   Jeremy Johnston, Planning Official 
RE:   Westdale Farm Labor Shelter Conditional Use Permit (CU-20-00001) 
DATE:   January 14, 2020 (Hearing Date) 
 
 
I. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
 Requested Action:  The proposed project would add four manufactured homes for the purposes of farm labor 
shelter. The proposed farm labor shelters will be utilized primarily between the months of April and August. 
Farm labor shelter is an allowed use in the Agriculture 20 zone with a conditional use permit. 

 
 Location:  Parcel 12701 located at 4900 Manastash Rd, Ellensburg, WA. In the NW1/4 of Section 18, Township 
17N, Range 18E. 

 
II. SITE INFORMATION 
 

Total Property Size:  31.73 Acres 
Number of Lots:  1 
Domestic Water:  Well  
Sewage Disposal:  Onsite septic 
Fire Protection: Fire District 2 (KVFR) 
Irrigation District:  KRD 

 
Site Characteristics:  
 North: Primarily privately-owned single family residential and agriculture uses  

South: Private and State lands, undeveloped and residential uses 
East: Primarily privately-owned single family residential and agriculture uses 
West: Primarily privately-owned single family residential and agriculture uses. 

 
Access:  The site is accessed from Manastash Rd, approximately 3.65 miles west of the city of Ellensburg. 
 
III. ZONING AND DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 
The parcels involved in this proposal are in a land use designation of Rural Working and zoning designation of 
Agriculture-20. The proposed project is classified as a “Farm Labor Shelter.” Farm Labor Shelters are an allowed 
use within Agriculture-20 Zone under KCC 17.15.060-1 with a conditional use permit when consistent with 
footnote #4 of this section. The footnote outlines five (5) criteria for Farm labor Shelter uses within the 
Agriculture-20 Zone. These criteria are examined in Section VIII “Project Analysis” of this staff report. 
 
 
 
IV. ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW 
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Deem Complete: A conditional use permit application (See Index #1) for Farm Labor Shelter (CU-20-00001) was 
submitted to Kittitas County Community Development Services department on June 4, 2020.  The application was 
deemed complete (See Index #6) on July 1, 2020. The site was posted in accordance with KCC 15A.03.110 on 
July 16, 2020 (See Index #7).  
 
Notice of Application:  A notice of application (See Index #8 and #10) for the Westdale LLC Farm Labor Shelter 
Conditional Use Permit (CU-20-00001) was mailed and/or emailed to adjacent landowners located within 500 
feet of any portion of the boundary of the proposal's tax parcels & applicable agencies. Notice was given to and 
published in the official newspaper of record for Kittitas County, and notice was posted to the Kittitas County 
Website on July 16, 2020, all in conformance with the Kittitas County Project Permit Application Process (Title 
15A) (See Index #8 and #10). The comment period concluded on July 30, 2020. 
 
V.  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 
The Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan has established specific goals and policies associated with Rural 
Resource lands. The Rural Working land use designation “encourage farming, ranching and storage of agriculture 
products, and some commercial and industrial uses compatible with the rural environment and supporting 
agriculture and/or forest activities.” The following goals and policies guide activities on Rural Resource lands 
throughout the County.  These goals and policies were developed in response to identified needs within the 
county, and support the County Wide Planning Policies: 
 
RR-G2: Opportunities should exist for traditional rural lifestyle and rural based economies.  
 

Staff Consistency Statement: The proposed project would add seasonal farm worker shelter to support the 
established use. The applicant has operated an Arabian Horse farm since the 1980’s on the property. 
Horses have historically been associated with agriculture and a rural lifestyle. 

 

RR-G5: Activities generally should not require extension of urban governmental services. 

Staff Consistency Statement: The proposal notes the use of an established well on the parcel to service the 
new farm shelters. On-site septic systems are proposed for each dwelling. No extension of urban 
government services will be required for this proposal. 

 
RR-G9: The County should continue to explore ways to provide rural economic opportunity. 
 

Staff Consistency Statement: The proposed project will allow the applicant to provide seasonal housing to 
its farm laborers. This provides economic opportunities for the workers as well as the applicant to meet 
their labor needs without stressing local temporary housing stocks. 

 
RP-15: Give preference to land uses in Rural designated areas that are related to agriculture, rural residential  
development, tourism, outdoor recreation, and other open space activities.  
 

Staff Consistency Statement: The proposed project is consistent with the rural designation as a livestock 
use. 

 
 
This application is consistent with the goals, policies, and objectives of the Kittitas County Comprehensive 
Plan as outlined above.   
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VI. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
A SEPA Checklist was submitted with the conditional use application and processed concurrently using the 
Optional DNS process under WAC 197-11-355. During the combined comment period environmental concerns 
were raised by public agencies with no comments submitted from private citizens and neighbors. CDS has 
considered these comments and found no significant environmental risks with the proposed project. Following the 
concurrent comment period, CDS issued a Determination of Non-Significance on December 16, 2020 (See Index 
#21). The appeal period for the SEPA DNS concluded on January 4, 2021. No appeals were filed.  
 
In addition, CDS performed a critical area review of the property. A type 9 stream was found along the southern 
border of the parcel. The proposed project location is well outside of the buffer for the type 9 stream.   
 
VII. AGENCY AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Applicable agencies, adjacent property owners, and interested parties have been given the opportunity to review 
this proposal.  All comments are on file and available for public review. All comment submittals can be found in 
their entirety in Index #s 11-19. The following parties provided substantive comments during the comment period. 
 
Agency Comments:  Washington State Department of Ecology, Washington State Department of Health, Kittitas 
County Fire Marshal, KVFR, DAHP, Kittitas County Public Health and Kittitas County Public Works. 
 

Washington State Department of Ecology (DOE): 
DOE provided comments noting the requirement of an NPDES Construction Stormwater General Permit 
if the project anticipates disturbing ground with the potential for stormwater discharge off-site. DOE also 
noted authorization requirements for any diverting of surface water and withdraw of ground water (See 
Index #16) 
 
Washington State Department of Health (DOH): 
DOH provided comment stating that the project applicant will need to confirm water availability and if a 
new water system is used the applicant will be required to submit a water system application. (See Index 
#15) 
 
Kittitas County Public Health: 
KC Public Health noted the requirement of a Group A or B water system depending on anticipated use 
levels. Public Health also noted that the well site will need to be approved as a potable water source. 
 
Kittitas County Fire Marshal: 
The Kittitas County Fire Marshal stated that the access will need to be IFC and KC Title 12 compliant. 
Additionally, the Fire Marshal noted the need for visible streetside addressing, annual fire safety 
inspections and the need for a knox box should a gate be utilized. The Fire Marshal reserved the right to 
require fire suppression systems upon review of building permit submittals. (See Index #14) 
 
Kittitas Valley Fire and Rescue: 
Rich Elliott of KVFR echoed many of the requirements noted by the Kittitas County Fire Marshal. Mr. 
Elliott strongly recommended that the new farm labor shelters include 13R sprinkler systems. (See Index 
#13)  
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Kittitas County Public Works: 
Kittitas County Public Works described access permit, grading permit, addressing requirements and 
stormwater requirements and thresholds. (See Index #11) 
 
Department of Archeology and Historic Preservation (DAHP): 
DAHP identified the project area as having a high probability of Cultural Resources. DAHP 
recommended an Inadvertent Discovery Plan be prepared prior to ground disturbing activities. (See Index 
#18) 
  

 
Public Comments: Two public comments were received for this project. One of the commenters provided 
comment after the conclusion of the comment period. 
 
 Tom Chini: 

Mr. Chini raised concerns about whether the need for farm labor shelter has been “clearly” established as 
described in the footnote associated with the use.  Mr. Chini raised several questions he felt should be 
clarified and considered prior to a determination. These questions related to the definition of a shelter, the 
length of the season in which the shelters will be used, what happens to shelters if the use is discontinued, 
and the actual need for the labor. Please see the full comment letter (Index # 17) for the complete set of 
concerns.  

 
 Gretchen Simpson (submitted after comment period): 

Mrs. Simpson raised concerns regarding what “temporary” means in the context of this application and 
raised concerns about a strain on the County tax system for projects of this kind. (See Index #24) 

  
 
VIII. PROJECT ANALYSIS 
 
In review of this proposal it is important to consider the goals and policies of the comprehensive plan, applicable 
county code, public and agency comments, any identified environmental concerns and state and federal 
requirements.  Identified below is planning staff’s analysis and consistency review for the subject application. 
 
 
Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan: 
The proposal is consistent with the goals and policies of the Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan.  As referenced 
above in Section V of this staff report, the following Comprehensive Plan goals and policies apply to this 
proposal: RR-G2, RR-G5, RR-G9, and RP-15.    
 
Provided the applicant follows and maintains the goals and policies, they shall be in compliance with the Kittitas 
County Comprehensive Plan.  Therefore, the County and applicant are in compliance with the Comprehensive 
Plan.  
 
Consistency with the provisions of KCC 17.60A, Conditional Uses:  
KCC 17.60A.015 provides the following review criteria to be considered in a conditional use analysis:  

1. The proposed use is essential or desirable to the public convenience and not detrimental or injurious to 
the public health, peace, or safety or to the character of the surrounding neighborhood.  

Applicant Response: “Seasonal farm labor is essential to agriculture business and providing 
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housing for the laborers is a long-standing practice. These homes seek to be humane, 
community-centered, code compliant, clean, well kept, and safe for these visiting workers.  It 
is desirable as it eases the burden of temporary housing on the community (especially this 
community which has a low-income housing shortage.) It is economically desirable as it will 
allow the locally owned business of Orrion Farms to be more efficient, more profitable and 
more successful and thereby serve the community in greater ways.” (See Index #2)  

Staff Response: The project will establish four manufactured homes for seasonal labor. The temporary 
housing needs in Kittitas County associated with farm labor and educational institutions are significant. 
As a result, these housing options can be limited and subject to demand fluctuations. The addition of farm 
labor shelter specific to the Orrion operation will create less burden on the temporary housing stock 
within Kittitas County. The proposed dwellings will be subject to all water, septic, building and 
occupancy standards established in Kittitas County Code and will be established on the applicant’s 
property. CDS agrees that the applicant has demonstrated consistency with KCC 17.60A(1). 

2. The proposed use at the proposed location will not be unreasonably detrimental to the economic welfare 
of the county and that it will not create excessive public cost for facilities and services by finding that  

a. The proposed use will be adequately serviced by existing facilities such as highways, 
roads, police and fire protection, irrigation and drainage structures, refuse disposal, 
water and sewers, and schools; or 

b. The applicant shall provide such facilities; or 
c. The proposed use will be of sufficient economic benefit to offset additional public costs or 

economic detriment. 

Applicant Response: “Four homes in this area, used on a seasonal basis will not overtax the 
existing community resources such as fire, schools, and police. Additionally, they will not 
overtax the local traffic as all four homes will be accessed through the same driveway and the 
driveway will be located off Victory Lane (existing) rather than Manastash Road. 
Furthermore, the project eliminates the daily commute of these workers during the labor 
season. The owners plan to install sufficient power, water and septic systems to serve the 
four homes.” (See Index #2) 

Staff Response: As proposed, the project will be adequately serviced by existing facilities and will not 
require additional public costs. The applicant is proposing private water and septic systems subject to 
Kittitas County Health standards. This staff report includes conditions to ensure the driveway will meet 
Kittitas County access standards.  The addition of four manufactured homes is not anticipated to have any 
notable impact on fire and police services. The addition of these labor shelters will not be economically 
detrimental to the public. CDS finds that the applicant’s proposal, as conditioned, consistent with KCC 
17.60A(2). 

3. The proposed use complies with relevant development standards and criteria for approval set forth in this 
title or other applicable provisions of Kittitas County Code. 

Applicant Response: Please see consistency with footnote #4 below. (See Index #2) 

Staff Response: The use is consistent, as conditioned, with the relevant development standards and criteria 
including KCC 17.15.060. 1 footnote #4 as described below. The Farm Labor Shelter use is permitted in the 
Agriculture 20 zone through a Conditional Use Permit. CDS finds that the applicant’s proposal, as 
conditioned, consistent with KCC 17.60A(3).    
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4. The proposed use will mitigate material impacts of the development, whether environmental or otherwise. 

Applicant Response: “Minimize haul distances, reduce vehicle idling time, use manufactured homes to 
lessen the construction timeline, use best practices to minimize soil erosion” (See Index #2) 

Staff Response: The proposal, as conditioned, will mitigate material impacts of the development. No 
significant environmental impacts are anticipated from this project. The recommended approval conditions 
include a requirement for consistency with all local, State and Federal standards and regulations. CDS finds 
that the applicant’s proposal, as conditioned, consistent with KCC 17.60A(4).    

5. The proposed use will ensure compatibility with existing neighboring land uses. 

Applicant Response: “Consistent with other housing and farm buildings to the North and South on 
Victory Lane as well as to the North of Manstash Rd.” (See Index #2) 

Staff Response: Neighboring land uses include other agricultural and residential uses. The character and scale 
of the proposed use will be compatible with adjacent uses. CDS finds that the applicant’s proposal, as 
conditioned, consistent with KCC 17.60A(5).    

6. The proposed use is consistent with the intent and character of the zoning district in which it is located. 

Applicant Response: “to preserve farming and rural lifestyles (providing farm workers housing is a 
long tradition in the ranching community and can be critical to a well-functioning agriculture 
business) and to preserve the farmland. (By locating the homes together, cottage housing style, the 
majority of the acreage is left alone.)” (See Index #2) 

Staff Response: The proposed use is an accessory to an existing horse ranch which has been in operation since 
the 1980’s. Agriculture uses are consistent with the Agriculture 20 zone. CDS finds that the applicant’s 
proposal, as conditioned, consistent with KCC 17.60A(6).          

7. For conditional uses outside of Urban Growth Areas, the proposed use: 
a. Is consistent with the intent, goals, policies, and objectives of the Kittitas County 

Comprehensive Plan, including the policies of Chapter 8, Rural and Resource Lands; 
b. Preserves “rural character” as defined in the Growth Management Act 
c. Requires only rural government services ; and 
d. Does not compromise the long term viability of designated resource lands. 

Applicant Response: “in that the open spaces and natural visual landscape remains the predominate 
characteristic; it extends opportunities for rural lifestyle and rural economies; compatible with 
fish/wildlife habitat by being located over 200 ft from the stream as req'd; by clustering the homes 
it prevents sprawl; allows workers to live   and  work in a  rural area, closer to their daily jobs thus 
eliminating daily vehicle commuting.” (See Index #2) 

Staff Response: The proposal is consistent with the Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan as described above in 
section “V.” The proposed use is an accessory to an agriculture use which is consistent with rural character. The 
proposal will only require rural government services and does not endanger the long-term viability of designated 
resource lands. CDS finds that the applicant’s proposal, as conditioned, consistent with KCC 17.60A(7).   
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Kittitas County CDS finds the application, as conditioned, to be consistent with the Conditional Use Review 
criteria established in KCC17.60A as described above.        

Consistency with KCC 17.15.060.2, Allowed Uses in Rural Non-LAMIRD Lands, Footnote #4: 
The following criteria are established in KCC 17.15.060.2 as required for Farm Labor Shelter uses within the 
Agriculture-20 Zone.  
 

1)  “The shelters are used to house farm laborers on a temporary or seasonal basis only, regardless of change 
of ownership, if it remains in farm labor-needed status;” 
 
Staff Analysis: The proposal includes the addition of four manufactured homes for the purposes of 
housing seasonal farm workers. This staff report has been conditioned to ensure the use will not be 
extended beyond this stated intention. 

2) “The shelters must conform with all applicable building and health regulations;” 

Staff Analysis: The proposal will be subject to all local, State and Federal regulations. The structures 
proposed will be subject to review for consistency with all building and health regulations. 
 

3) “The number of shelters shall not exceed four (4) per twenty (20) contiguous acres of land area;” 
 
Staff Analysis: The proposal includes four shelters. The associated parcel exceeds the minimum 20-acre 
threshold.  
 

4) “The shelters are owned and maintained by the owner or operator of an agricultural operation which 
clearly demonstrates the need for farm laborers;” 
 
Staff Analysis: Orrion Farms operates a horse breeding operation. The raising of animals to be sold is 
classified as an agricultural product use under Kittitas County definitions (KCC 17.08.033). The applicant 
has expressed a need for these farm labor shelters to meet the labor demands of their agricultural 
operation. 
 

5) “Should the parent agricultural operation cease or convert to non-agriculture use, then the farm labor 
shelters shall conform with all applicable buildings and health regulations.” 
 
Staff Analysis: This staff report has been conditioned to ensure the conformance with all applicable 
building and health regulations, should the agricultural operation cease. 

 
Staff Conclusions: Kittitas County CDS finds the application, as conditioned, is consistent with KCC 17.15.060.2 
footnote #4. 

  
Consistency with the provisions of the KCC Title 17A, Critical Areas: 
CDS conducted an administrative critical area review in accordance with KCC 17A and found no critical areas on 
the project site that will be impacted by the proposal.  
 
Consistency with the provisions of the KCC Title 14.04, Building Code: 
Any future buildings must be consistent with International Building Codes.   
 
Consistency with the provisions of KCC Title 12, Roads and Bridges: 
As conditioned, the proposal is consistent with the provisions of KCC Title 12. 
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Consistency with the provisions of KCC Title 20, Fire and Life Safety: 
As conditioned, the proposal is consistent with the provisions of KCC Title 20. 
 
Agency Comments: 
The following agencies provided comments during the comment period:  Washington State Department of 
Ecology, Washington State Department of Health, Kittitas County Fire Marshal, KVFR, DAHP, Kittitas County 
Public Health and Kittitas County Public Works. (Index #11-19).  
 
Public Comments: 
Two public comments were received for this proposal. Tom Chini submitted comment during the comment period 
and Gretchen Simpson submitted comment after the comment period. (See Index #17) 
 
 
IX. Findings of Fact 
 

1. The proposed project would add four manufactured homes for the purposes of farm labor shelter. The 
proposed farm labor shelters will be utilized between the months of April and August. Farm labor shelter 
is an allowed use in the Agriculture 20 zone with a conditional use permit. 
 

 2. Site Information 
 

Total Property Size:  31.73 Acres 
Number of Lots:  1 
Domestic Water:  Well  
Sewage Disposal:  Onsite septic 
Power/Electricity:  PSE 
Fire Protection:  Fire District 2 (KVFR) 
Irrigation District:  KRD 
  

3. Site Characteristics:  
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

 
4. Access:  The site is accessed from Manastash Rd, approximately 3.65 miles west of the city of 
Ellensburg. 
  
5. The Comprehensive Plan land use designation is Rural Working and the zoning designation is 
Agriculture 20. 
 
6. The project includes 4 manufactured homes for Farm Labor Shelter. Farm Labor Shelters are a 
permitted use within the Agriculture 20 zone with a conditional use permit. 
 
7. A conditional use permit application (See Index #1) for Farm Labor Shelter (CU-20-00001) was 
submitted to Kittitas County Community Development Services department on June 4, 2020.  The 
application was deemed complete (See Index #6) on July 1, 2020. The site was posted in accordance with 
KCC 15A.03.110 on July 16, 2020 (See Index #7). 
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8. A notice of application (See Index #8) for the Westdale LLC Farm Labor Shelter Conditional Use 
Permit (CU-20-00001) was mailed and/or emailed to adjacent landowners located within 500 feet of any 
portion of the boundary of the proposal's tax parcels & applicable agencies. Notice was given to and 
published in the official newspaper of record for Kittitas County, and notice was posted to the Kittitas 
County Website on July 16, 2020, all in conformance with the Kittitas County Project Permit Application 
Process (Title 15A) (See Index #8 and 10). The comment period concluded on July 30, 2020. 
 
9. A SEPA Checklist was submitted with the conditional use application and processed concurrently 
using the Optional DNS process under WAC 197-11-355. During the combined comment period 
environmental concerns were raised by public agencies with no comments submitted from private citizens 
and neighbors. CDS has considered these comments and found no significant environmental risks with 
the proposed project. Following the concurrent comment period, CDS issued a Determination of Non-
Significance on December 16, 2020 (See Index #21). The appeal period for the SEPA DNS concluded on 
January 4, 2021. No appeals were filed.  
 
In addition, CDS performed a critical area review of the property. A type 9 stream was found along the 
southern border of the parcel. The proposed project location is well outside of the buffer for the type 9 
stream.   
 
10. The proposal is consistent with the goals and policies of the Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan.  As 
referenced above in Section V of this staff report, the following Comprehensive Plan goals and policies 
apply to this proposal: RR-G2, RR-G5, RR-G9, and RP-15.    

 
12. Road Standards and access requirements are subject to the standards outlined in Kittitas County Code 
Title 12.    
 
13. The following agencies provided comments during the comment period:  Washington State 
Department of Ecology, Washington State Department of Health, Kittitas County Fire Marshal, KVFR, 
DAHP, Kittitas County Public Health and Kittitas County Public Works. (Index #11-19).  

 
14. CDS received one public comment during the comment period and one public comment after the 
conclusion of the comment period. 
 
16. The proposal, as conditioned, is consistent with the goals and policies of the Kittitas County 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
17. This proposal, as conditioned, is consistent with the provisions of KCC Title 12, Roads and Bridges as 
conditioned. 
 
18. This proposal, as conditioned, is consistent with the provisions of KCC Title 14, Buildings and 
Construction as conditioned. 

 
19. This proposal, as conditioned, is consistent with the provisions of KCC 17.60A, Conditional Uses 
and meets the criteria of KCC 17.15.060.2 footnote #4. 

 
 21. This proposal, as conditioned, is consistent with the provisions of KCC 17A, Critical Areas. 
 

        22. This proposal, as conditioned, is consistent with KCC 20, Fire Life and Safety. 
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X. Conclusions: 
 

1. As conditioned, the development meets the goals, policies and implementation 
recommendations as set forth in the Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan. 

 
2. As conditioned, this proposal is consistent with applicable federal and state laws and 

regulations. 
 

3. Public use and interest will be served by approval of this proposal. 
 

4. As conditioned, the proposal is consistent with Kittitas County Code Title 17 Zoning, Title 
17A Critical Areas, Title 14.04 Building Code, Title 12 Roads and Bridges, and Title 20 Fire 
and Life Safety. 

 
XI. Recommendation and Conditions of Approval: 

 
Kittitas County recommends preliminary approval of the Westdale LLC Conditional Use CU-20-00001 
based on the above staff analysis, findings of fact, and conclusions with the following conditions of 
approval. 
 
1. The project shall proceed in substantial conformance with the plans and application materials on 

file with CDS dated June 4, 2020 and subsequent information included in the complete file index 
except as amended by the conditions herein. 
 

2. The applicant shall comply with all local, State and Federal environmental standards and 
regulations in place at the time of building application submittal. 
 

3. The proposed manufactured homes will require permitting through the Washington State 
Department of Health for building permits and inspections. Any separate communal accessory 
buildings will require permitting through Kittitas County CDS Building.  

4. Should the parent agriculture operation cease or convert to non-agriculture use, then the farm 
labor shelters shall conform with all applicable building, zoning, and platting requirements or 
be removed. The structures shall not be utilized for purposes inconsistent with that defined as 
Farm Labor Shelter in Kittitas County Code Title 17. 

5. An access permit is required for the shared driveway. The access off Victory Lane will 
be constructed to current Kittitas County joint-use driveway standards.  
 

6. The access must be constructed and inspected prior to the occupancy of any home. 
 

7. A separate address will be required for each home. 
 

8. A grading permit will be required for any grading or fill over 100 cubic yards. 
 
9. The applicant shall work with Kittitas County Public Works to assure all Kittitas County 

stormwater requirements are met. Evidence of Public Works approval shall be required for final 
approval. 

 
10. The applicant shall comply with all water and septic standards as outlined in Kittitas County 
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Code Title 13 to the satisfaction of Kittitas County Public Health. 
 
11. The applicant shall comply with Kittitas County Title 20 Fire Life Safety requirements. The 

Kittitas County Fire Marshal reserves the right to require fire suppression systems.  
 
12. StreetSide addressing shall be visible from the road on each structure. 
 
13. All structures will be subject to annual fire and life safety inspections. 
 
14. Knox access will be required for gate access.  

  
15. A grading permit through Kittitas County Public Works will be required for any dirt work 

exceeding 100 cubic yards of material. 

16. Should ground disturbing or other activities related to the proposed subdivision result in the 
inadvertent discovery of cultural or archaeological materials, work shall be stopped in the 
immediate area and contact be made with the Washington State Department of Archaeology 
and Historic Preservation (DAHP).  Work shall remain suspended until the find is assessed 
and appropriate consultation is conducted.  Should human remains be inadvertently 
discovered, as dictated by Washington State RCW 27.44.055, work shall be immediately 
halted in the area and contact made with the coroner and local law enforcement in the most 
expeditious manner possible. 

17. It is a proponent’s responsibility to demonstrate compliance with the approval conditions of a 
conditional use permit. Compliance with all conditions must be demonstrated in writing to 
Kittitas County CDS prior to Final Conditional Use Permit issuance. Final approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit is required within 5 years of the approval date pursuant to KCC 
17.60A.090. 
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